
Herman Brookman (1891-1973)
By Val Ballestrem

With a career that spanned more than fifty years, architect Herman Brookman designed several
landmark buildings in the Portland area from the 1920s to the 1950s. His work has long been
recognized as much for its artistry as for its design quality.

Born in 1891 in New York City, Brookman began working in the office of New York architect Harrie
T. Lindeberg after completing high school. Under Lindeberg's tutelage, he became an expert
draftsman and designer, working primarily on luxurious New York residences.

In 1923, M. Lloyd Frank of the Meier & Frank Department Store in Portland recruited Brookman to
design his new home in the southwest hills. Brookman had studied English manor houses, and his
design of the Frank Estate showcased his skill as both architect and landscape designer. The home
and elaborate terraced gardens were placed on axis with Mount Hood in the distance. Completed in
1925, the Frank Estate, also known as Fir Acres, was a gathering place for Portland's high society
until it was sold to Albany College in 1942. The home, which was listed on the National Register of
Historic Places in 1979, is now the administration building for Lewis & Clark College.

After completing his work on the Frank Estate, Brookman's services were in high demand. He soon
was designing homes throughout the Portland area, including Menucha (1926), Julius Meier’s
summer retreat in Corbett. Brookman's work at Menucha is said to have been a major influence on
architects Pietro Belluschi and John Yeon, who used similar roof forms in their early residential
projects.

Another of Brookman's early designs was the Harry A. Green home (1928) in Portland's Laurelhurst
neighborhood. The house, Mediterranean in style with curving stucco walls, was elaborately
adorned with cast-stone and wrought-iron ornamentation, including an entrance gate with an
extravagant peacock design.

Brookman made a name for himself with his residential designs in the mid-1920s, but the project
that is arguably his masterpiece is not a home at all. In 1927, he began work on Temple Beth Israel,
at 1931 Northwest Flanders Street in Portland. Brookman designed the building in collaboration
with architects Morris H. Whitehouse, John V. Bennes, and Harry A. Herzog.

Temple Beth Israel is a marvel of Byzantine-style architecture. The building's exterior is covered in
elaborate brick, terra cotta, and stonework, while the interior features plaster and bronze
ornamentation. The building is a masterwork and was listed on the National Register of Historic
Places in 1979.

Working mostly solo and out of an office in his Northwest Portland home, Brookman continued to
practice until the early 1960s. His last major commission was a home for Alan and Barbara
Goldsmith in southwest Portland. Designed in 1958, the Goldsmith home displays in dramatic
fashion how far Brookman had evolved stylistically. He was no longer designing houses in the
English or highly decorative Mediterranean styles, but instead embraced the Northwest Regional
Style, with its Asian influences and emphasis on site, natural materials, and landscaping. The
Goldsmith house was listed on the National Register of Historic Places in 2007.

Brookman retired in 1965 and moved to Larkspur, California, where he died in November 1973.
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